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RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Statement by the Board of Directors
31 December 2022

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors of RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd (the Bank) are responsible for ensuring that the financial
statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022 and its
financial performance, statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In preparing these financial statements, the Board of Directors is
required to:

i) adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates
and then apply them consistently;

i) comply in accordance with accounting policies of IFRS and ensure that these have been, appropriately
disclosed, explained and quantified in the financial statements;

iii) maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls;

iv) prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that the Bank
will continue operations for the foreseeable future; and

V) effectively control and direct the Bank and be involved in all material decisions affecting the operations and
performance of the Bank, and ascertain that such decisions have been properly reflected in the financial
statements.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Bank has complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We do hereby state that the accompanying financial statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022 and its financial performance, statements of changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended and are properly drawn up in accordance with IFRS.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of RHB Bank Lao
Sole Co,, Ltd. (the Bank) as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

What we have audited
The Bank's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with IFRS and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited. 4" Floor, Allianz Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, PO Box 7003,
Vientiane Lao PDR, Telephone : + 856 21 222718-9, Facsimile: + 856 21 222723, www.pwc.com/la
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited

By Sinsiri Thangsombat.. . -

Partner ~

Vientiane Capital, Lao P.D.R.
Date: 31 March 2023

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited. 4" Floor, Allianz Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, PO Box 7003,
Vientiane Lao PDR, Telephone : + 856 21 222718-9, Facsimile: + 856 21 222723, www.pwc.com/la
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RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2022

ASSETS

Cash and short-term funds with central bank

Placement with central bank

Deposits and placements with other banks

Loans and advances to customers
Intangible assets

Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Other assets

Deferred tax asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers
Amount due to parent company
Other liabilities

Lease liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Paid-up capital

Legal reserve
Deficits

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditor’s report — pages 2 to 3.

15
16
17
18

19
20

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

115.252.113.692
583.845.454.343
170.001.063.755
198.820.693.226
6.433.776.918
19.833.271.342
5.918.976.167
2.366.369.086
17.085.451.402

96.577.338.652
426.530.291.649
64.299.758.687
182.843.044.372
6.333.794.951
22.707.279.748
7.251.167.662
3.130.940.034
27.239.853.146

1.119.557.169.931

836.913.468.901

77.491.663.863
630.885.266.119
8.344.529.114
13.043.824.889

65.074.400.116
456.888.766.628
6.857.392.848
8.771.320.278

729.765.283.975

537.591.879.870

460.300.050.000
2.130.187.855
(72.638.351.699)

420.600.037.500
2.130.187.655
(123.408.636.124)

389.791.885.956

299.321.589.031

1.119.557.169.931

836.913.468.901




RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note LAK LAK
Interest income 58.103.370.317 52.483.119.696
Interest expense (23.555.088.198) (19.146.336.524)
NET INTEREST INCOME 21 34.548.282.119 33.336.783.172
Allowance for credit losses on loans 25 57.945.695.936 (146.119.374.711)
Allowance for credit losses on other financial
assets 25 (473.246.902) (101.572.476)
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER ALLOWANCE
FOR CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL
ASSETS 92.020.731.153 (112.884.164.015)
Fee and commission income 688.545.522 762.281.596
Fee and commission expense (335.567.370) (262.824.250)
NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 22 352.978.152 499.457.346
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 24.535.640 -
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net (187.730.954) 1.468.588.018
Payroll and other staff costs 23 (17.835.614.325) (12.143.166.883)
General and administrative expenses 24 (8.027.413.634) (6.876.785.516)
Depreciation and amortisation charges 10,11,12 (5.422.799.863) (4.152.817.759)
TOTAL EXPENSES (31.449.023.136) (21.704.182.140)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 60.924.686.169 (134.088.888.809)
Income tax expense 26 (10.154.401.744) 29.585.860.935
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 50.770.284.425 (104.503.027.874)
Other comprehensive income = =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR 50.770.284.425 (104.503.027.874)

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditor's report — pages 2 to 3.




RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2021
Additional paid-up capital
Net loss for the year

As at 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2022
Additional paid-up capital
Net profit for the year

As at 31 December 2022

Note

19

19

Paid-up capital
LAK

Legal reserve
LAK

Deficits
LAK

Total
LAK

380.900.025.000
39.700.012.500

2.130.187.655

(18.905.608.250)

(104.503.027.874)

364.124.604.405
39.700.012.500
(104.503.027.874)

420.600.037.500

2.130.187.655

(123.408.636.124)

299.321.589.031

420.600.037.500
39.700.012.500

2.130.187.655

(123.408.636.124)

50.770.284.425

299.321.589.031
39.700.012.500
50.770.284.425

460.300.050.000

2.130.187.655

(72.638.351.699)

389.791.885.956

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditor’s report — pages 2 to 3.




RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note LAK LAK
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax 60.924.686.169 (134.088.888.809)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 11 3.366.617.312 2.644.426.735
Amortisation of intangible assets 10 723.991.056 311.901.339
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 12 1.332.191.495 1.196.489.685
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (24.535.640) -
Allowance for credit losses on loans 25 (46.943.814.828) 148.039.352.709
Allowance for credit losses on other financial assets 28 473.246.902 101.572.476
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net 7.166.187.170 (1.468.588.018)
Interest income 21 (58.103.370.317) (52.483.119.696)
Interest expense 21 23.555.088.198 19.146.336.524
Operating loss before changes in operating assets
and liabilities (7.529.712.483) (16.600.517.055)
(Increase)/decrease in statutory deposits with BOL (79.881.565) 1.158.596.732
Increase in placement with central bank (157.334.102.734) (35.276.355.800)
Increase in placements with banks (101.522.000.000) (50.000.000.000)
Decrease in loans and advances to customers 30.806.021.230 23.484.384.238
Decrease in other assets 707.276.101 3.357.142.363
Increase in deposits from customers 11.442.006.883 17.370.975.398
Decrease in deposits from other banks - (30.000.659.125)
Increase in amount due to parent company 157.334.102.734 34.365.889.935
Increase in other liabilities 1.487.136.266 3.310.035.130
Cash used in operations (64.689.153.568) (48.830.508.184)
Interest received 57.243.053.675 50.476.761.201
Interest paid (22.202.467.169) (18.955.975.271)
Net cash used in operating activities (29.648.567.062) (17.309.722.254)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (503.975.574) (13.561.356.994)
Purchases of intangible assets (823.973.023) (5.949.735.182)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 35.902.308 -
Net cash used in investing activities (1.292.046.289) (19.511.092.176)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease liabilities (2.705.951.605) (963.699.152)
Capital injection 19 39.700.012.500 39.700.012.500
Net cash generated from financing activities 36.994.060.895 38.736.313.348
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6.053.447 544 1.915.498.918
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 8 106.047.808.175 95.588.472.945
Effect of foreign exchange difference 16.257.446.372 8.543.836.312
ash equivalents, ending 8 128.358.702.091 106.047.808.175

The accompanying notes on pages 8 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditor's report — pages 2 to 3.




RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Lid (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People's
Democratic Republic {Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank operstes
its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018 and under the
regulations of Bank of Lac P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its revised Banking License No.04/BOL dated
24 March 2021 {replaced Banking License No. 10/BOL dated 30 April 2014) and Enterprise Registration
Certificate No.0628/ERA dated 19 Aprit 2021 (replaced Enterprise Registration Certificate No.213/ERA dated
36 May 2014).

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and refated financial services in Lac
PD.R.

The Bank is 100% fully owned by RHB Bank Berhad. In July 2022, RHE Bank Berhad had injected additional
paid up capiftai of LAK 38.700.012.500, increasing the registered capifai of the Bank from LAK
420.600.037.500 to LAK 450.300.050.000. The number of shares issued is at 45.801.000 {2021: 41.850.750)
at issue price of LAK 10.050 per share.

The registered office of the Bank is at Unit No.1, House No. 008, Kaysone Phomvihane Road, Phonxay Village,
Lac P.DR.

The Bank's Board of Directors has reviewed these financia! statements and approved for their issuance on
31 March 2023,

According to BOL's notice number 1086/A0, dated 24 November 2022, banks in Lao POR are required {o
prepare a separate set of financial statements in accordance with Intermnational Finencial Reporting Stendards
(IFRS). Apart from this set, the Bank has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the accounting
policies of the Bank and the relevant accounting regulations and notifications of BOL.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparafion of the financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise siated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with [FRS as issued by International
Accounting Sfandards Board {IASB) and with international Financial Reporting Inferpretations
Comritiee (IFRIC). Additional information by national regulations is included where appropriate.

The financial statements comprise the siatement of comprehensive income, staiement of financial
position, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, and the notes. The financial
statements have heen prepared under the historical cost convention.

{a) New standards and amendments that are effective for the first time for periods on or after
1 January 2022 are as follows:

»  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use Amendmenis to IAS 76 - The
amendment to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’) prohibits an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of PPE any proceeds received from seliing items
produced while the entily is preparing the asset for its intended use. 1t also clarifies that an
entity is “testing whether the asset is functioning properly’ when it assesses the technical
and physical performance of the asset.

e« Annual Improvements to {FRS Standards 2018-2020 - includes improvernenis on IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IFRS 16 Leases which were finalised in May 2020. IFRS 9
Financial Instruments clarifies which fees should be included in the 10% test for
derecognition of financial labilities. IFRS 16 leases amends the illustrative example 13 to
remove the illustration of payments by the lessor relating to leasehold improvements, to
remove any confusion about the treatment of lease incentives.




RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(@)

(b)

New standards and amendments that are effective for the first time for periods on or after
1 January 2622 are as follows:

Onerous Confracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract Amendments fo IAS 37 - The amendment
to 1AS 37 clarifies that the direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both the incremental
costs of fufilling the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling
contracts. Before recognising a separate provision for an onerous confraci, the entity
recognises any impairment loss that has ocourred on assets used in fulfilling the contract.

Standards and interpretations that had been issued but were not mandatory for annual reporting
periods ended 31 December 2022:

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2022 reperting periods and have not been early adopied by the
Bank. The foliowing are applicable new standards, amendments and interpretations to the Bank:

L

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current Amendments to IAS 1 - The narrow-
scope amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are
clagsified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of
the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events
after the reporting date {e.g. the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). The
amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of g liability. In
May 20620, the IASB issued an Exposure Draft proposing to defer the effective date of the

14

amendments io 1 January 2022 {deferred from 1 January 20223,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies Amendments o IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 -
The IASB amended IAS 1 reguire entifies 1o disciose their material rather than their
significant accounting policies. The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy
information’ and explain how to identify when accounting policy information is material. They
further clarify that immaterial accounting poelicy information does not need to be disclosed.
if it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting information. The revisions are
effective on 1 January 2023.

Definition of Accounting Estimates Amendments to JAS 8 - The amendment to 1AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors clarifies how companies
should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates.
The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates are applied
prospectively to future transactions and other fulure events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally applied retrospectively to past fransactions and other past events as
well as the current period. The revisions are effective on 1 January 2023,

Deferred Tax refated to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction Amendments
fo IAS 12 - The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require companies to recognise
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounis of taxable
and deductible emporary differences. They will typically apply to transactions such as
leases of iessees and decommissicning obligations, and will require the recognition of
additional deferred tax assets and liabilifies. The revisions are effective on 1 January 2023.




RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

22

2.3

Measurement and presenfation currency
{a} Functional and presentalion currency

ltems inciuded in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Bank operates (the funcitional currency). The Bank's
financial statements are presented in Laotian KIP 'LAK' {the presentation currency}, which is
also the Bank’s functional currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resutiing from the
seitlement of such transactions and from the translation of monelary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies ai year end exchange rates are generaily recognised in profit
or i0ss.

Financial assets

The Bank's significant financial assets include cash and balances with central bank, deposits and
placement with other banks, lIoans and advances and other assets,

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset at fair value plus fransaction costs that are
directly attributable to acquisition of the financial asset in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL"). Transaction cosis of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed
in the income siatement. Financial assefs are recognised when the enfily becomes a parly io the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classification
The Bank classify its financiai assets measured at amortised cost.

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity arnount and, for financial assets, adjusted
for any ioss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amoriised cost of a
financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction
costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the effective
interest rate, such as origination fees. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future
credit losses.

When the Bank revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective
financiat asset or finandcial liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (‘SPPJ'), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured as described in note 4.1.2. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interesi rate method.

Business model and SPPI requirement for debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer's
perspective. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on the Bank’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

10



RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

23

Financial assets
Classification
Busiriess modef

The business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That
is, whether the Bank's objective is solely to coliect the contractual cash flows from the asseis oris to
collect both the contraciual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. if naither of these
is applicable {e.q. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified
as part of ‘other business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the Bank in
determining the business model for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assels were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key
managemernt personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI

Where the business model is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual
cash flows and seli, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (the 'SPPI test’), In making this assessment, the Bank considers
whether the contraciual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement ie. interest
includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit
margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financiat
asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Impairment
Expected credit loss model {ECL’)
The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss {{ECL'} associated with iis debt

instruments carried at amortised cost. The Bank recognises a loss allowance for such losses at sach
reporting date. The measurement of ECL refiects:

° An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evalualing a range of
possible outcomes;

s The time value of money,; and

s Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date zbout past events, current conditions and forecasis of fulure economic
conditions.

Significant increase in credit risk {'SICR)

. The Bank considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a SICR on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a SICR, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of defauit as at the date of initial recognition.

. Among the indicators incorporated in asceriaining SICR are:

o internal credit rating;

o3 externa! credit rating (as far as available);

& actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower's ability to meet
its obligations;
actuai or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower,
significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower;
significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality
of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements; and
o significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the borrower, including

changes in the payment status of borrower in the group and changes in the cperating
results of the borrower

o0

O

Macroecenomic information is incorporated as part of the internal rating model.

Note 4.1.2 provides more detail of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured.

11



RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

Financial assets
De-recognition

The financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these
assets have ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and
rewards of cwnership of the assets are also transferred {that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards
have not been transferred, the Bank tesis the control to ensure that continuing involvement on the
basis of any retained powers of confrol does not prevent de-recognition),

Financial liabilities

The Bank's significant financial liabilifies include amount due to parent company, deposits from
customars, lease liabilties and other labildies.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and subseguently
measured at amortised cost using effective inferest rate. Financial liabllities are recognised when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

De-recognition

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished (i.e.
when the cbligation specified in the confract is discharged, cancelled, or expires).

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asseis and liabilities are offset and the nat amount reported in the Bank's statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assef and settle the liability simultaneously.

Recognition of income and expenses
251 Interestincome and expenses

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within
‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the Bank's statement of comprehensive income using
the effective interest rate method.

interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate o the gross carrying amount
of financial assets except for financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets but have been subsequently become credit-impaired {or ‘stage 3"}, for
which interest revenue is calcuiated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost
{i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision).

26.2 Fee and commission income and expenses

Fees and commissions are generally racegnised on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely io be drawn down are deferred
(together with refated direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective inferest rate
on the loan.

impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
assel's carrying amount exceeds iis recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating
units).

The impairment test also can be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell or the
value in use can be determined reliably. Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.8

29

2.10

2.1

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivaients comprise
balances with one month or less matwrity from the date of acquisition, which includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with other banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of one month or less.

Legal reserve

Under the requirement of the Law on Commercial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 07 Decernber 2018, commercial
banks are required o appropriate net profit o regulatory reserve fund, business expansion fund, and other
funds.

in accordance with (Revised) Enterprise law No. 46/NA, daled 26 December 2013 Capital Adeqguacy, the
regulatory reserve fund shall be provided annually at 10% from profit after tax. When this regulatory reserve
fund accumulates half of registered capital, the company may suspend the deduction, unless otherwise
provided by Law of Limited Company.

Leases for lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset (RO and a corresponding liability at the date which the
leased asset is available for use by the Bank. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabifities include the net present value of the fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments),

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain exiension oplions are also included in the
measurament of liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implici in the lease. If the rate cannot be
reaity determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Bank, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to oblain an asset of similar vatue to the ROU in a similar economic envirenment with similar
terms, security, and conditions.

ROU are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability. ROU
are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Payments associated with shortderm leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or iess.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subseqguent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separafe asset, as
appropriate, only whern if is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow fc
the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All cther repair and maintenance costs are charged fo statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis at prescribed rates over their estimated useful lives
as shown below:

Category Depreciation rate
Buiidings and improvements 5% or over the pericd of the lease
Office equipment 20%

Computer equipment 20% - 25%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

13



RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

212

2.13

Property and equipment

Leasehold improvements are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful iife and the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. There are no material adjustments arising from the review that would require
disclosure in the financial statements.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
assel’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Bank's staterment of
comprehensive income.

intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acguire and
bring to use the specific software. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price plus any directly
atribufable costs of bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use. Computer software
licences are subsequently carried at cost less accumutated amertisation and impairment 1osses. These
costs are amortised over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 vears.

Current and deferred income tax

The ihcome fax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current’s {axable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabiiities aftributable to temporary differences and to unusad tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the fax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period in the county where the Bank operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect {o situations in
which appiicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. it esiablishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected o be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if if arises from initial recognition of an asset or Hability
in a fransaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accourting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is defermined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting pericd and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is rezlised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised cnly fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax asseis against current tax Habilities and when the deferred tax assets and fiabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention {o settle the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.14

2.15

Employee benefits
{a) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled.

(b} Post-employment benefits

Post-empioyment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the National Soclat
Security Fund Office which belongs to the Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare. The Bank is
required to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social insurance premium
to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 5.5% of employee’s basic salary and employer will
help to paying 8% on a monthly basis or of celling LAK4,506,000 in case employee’s basic
safary higher than ceiling rate. The Bank has no further significant obligation cencerning post-
employment benefits for the employees other than this.

(c) Termination benefits
In accordance with Article 90 of the Amended Labour Law No. 43/NA, dated 24 December 2013,

the Bank has the obligation to pay allowance for employees who are terminated by dismissal in
the following cases:

. Compensation for the canceliation of employment contracis shall be 10% of the last
salary or wage muliiplied by the iotal number of months worked,
. For unjustified termination of employment contracts in accordance with the Article 88 of

the Amended Labour law, compensation will be 15% of the last salary or wage multipiied
by the total number of months worked, and

° Cancellation of employment contracts for reasons not specified in the Amended Labour
Law, the Bank must implement compensation in accordance with the agreement
between the Bank and the employee.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of simifar obligations, the likelihood of an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect fo any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre<ax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal to the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Bank's
accounting policies.

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities within
the next financial year. All estimates and assumptions required in conformity with IFRS are best estimates
undertaken in accordance with the applicable standards. Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a
continuous basis, and are based on past experience and other factors, inciuding expectations with regard fo
future events. Accounting policies and management’s judgements for certain items are especially critical for
the Bank’s results and financial situation due to their materiality.

{a}

(b)

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost
is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions abeut future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defauiting and the resulting losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues used in measuring ECL. is further
detailed in note 4.1.2 which also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL te changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required In applying the accounting requirements for
measuring ECL, such as:

e Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

° Cheosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated £CI; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

in determining the ECL, management will evaluate a range of possible outcomes, taking into account
pasi evenis, current conditionsfirends and economic outlooks. Additional consideration through
structured management cverlays have been considered and reflected to ensure adequacy of ECL. The
structured management overiays are subject to robust review and governance process.

As the current IFRS 2 models are not expected to generate levels of ECL to cater for the unprecedented
and on-going COVID-19 pandemic due to lack of actual historical loss experiences, overlays and post-
mode! adjusiments have been appled to determine a sufficient overall level of ECLs for the year ended
and as at 31 December 2022,

These overlays and pest-mode! adjustments were taken 1o reflect the latest macroeconomic outiook
not captured in the modelled outcome and the potential impact to delinquencies and defaults. The
overlays and post-model adjustments involved significant level of judgement and reflect the
management’s views of possible severities of the pandemic and paths of recovery in the forward
looking assessment for ECL estimation purposes.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the Bank in the above areas is set
out in note 4.1.2.

Taxes

Management exercises judgement in determining the provision for income taxes and whether deferred
taxes should be recognised or temporary differences arising from credit loss allowances since the
taxation system in the Lao PDR can be subject to interpretations by different relevant authorities. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate fax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Management has then concluded thaf deferred taxes on the credit
loss allowances should not be recognised. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounis
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made. Management also exercises judgement with regards
to deferred tax assets. Where the possibility exists that no future taxable income may flow against
which these assets can be offset, the deferred tax asseis are not recognised.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGENENT POLICIES

The Bank’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The
core functions of the Bank’'s risk management are to identify all key risks for the Bank, measure these risks,
manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best market practice.

The Bank’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise polential adverse
effects on the Bank's financial performance.

The Barik defines risk as the possibility of losses or profits foregene, which may be caused by internal or
external factors.

Risk management is carried out by the Compliance and Risk Management Depariment under policies
approved by the Beard of Directors and Beard Risk Committee. The Compliance and Risk Management
Department identifies, evaluates and minimises financial risks in close co-operation with the Bank’s operating
units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, inferest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments. In addifion, internal audit is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and the control environment.

The risks arising from financial instruments to which the Bank is exposed are financial risks, which include
credit risk, liquidity risk and marke! risk {which are discussed below).

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principat in the form of specific provisions as a result
of defauits by the borrowears or countarparties through its lending and investing activities. The primary
exposure to credit risk atises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit exposure in this
regard is represented by the carnrying armounts of the assets on the slatement of financial position. The
lending activities are guided by the Bank's credit policy to ensure that the overall objectives in the
area of lending are achieved ie. that the loans portiolio is strong and healthy and credit risks are
well diversified. The credit policy documents are the credit control and recovery manual, credit
operations manual, and credit policy manual.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business, management therefore carefully manages
its exposure to credit risk.

411 Credit risk measurement
Loans and advances fo customers

The estimation of credit risk exposure for risk management purposes is complex and reguires
the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash
flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a porifelio of assets entails
further estimations as to the lkelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of
default correlations between counterparties. The Bank measures credit risk using Probability of
Defgult (PD). Exposure at Default {EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the
approach used for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under IFRS 8.

Credit risk grading

The Bank uses internal credit risk gradings that reflect its assessment of the probability of defauit
of individual counterparties, The Bank uses internal rating models tailored to the various
categories of counterparty. Borrower and loan specific information collected at the time of
application is fed into this rating model. In addition, the models enable expert judgement from
the Credit Risk Officer to be fed into the final internal credit rating for each exposure. This allows
for considerations which may nof be captured as par of the other data inputs into the model.

The credit grades are calibrated such that the risk of defauit increases exponentially at each
higher risk grade.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1 Credit risk

4.1.2 Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 9 cutlines a ‘three-stage’ modet! for impairment based on changes in credi guality since
initial recognition as summarised below:

Stage 1: 12 months ECL — not credit impaired - For credit exposures where there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or which has low credit
risk af reporting date and that are not credit impaired upen origination, the ECL associated
with the probability of default events cccurring within the nest 12 months will be
recognised.

Stage 2. Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired - For credit exposures wherg there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired,
the ECL asscciated with the probability of default events occurring within the ifetime ECL
will be recognised. Unless idenfified at an earlier stage, all financial asseis are deemed to
have suffered a significant increase in credit risk when 30 days past due.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired - Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired
when one or more objective evidence of defaults that have a defrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial assets that have
become credit impaired, a ifetime ECL will be recognised.

Generally, all financial assets that are 90 days past due or more are classified under Stage
3. The Bank considers the following as constituting an event of default:

I Quantitalive criteria
the berrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to
the Bank.
e Qualitative criteria
legal action has been initiated by Bank for recovery purposes;
borrower is a bankrupt;
borrower has been assigned to external collection agency

4.1.2.1 Measuring ECL —~ Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month {12M} or Lifetime basis depending on whether &
SICR has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the PD, EAD, and L.GD, defined
as follows:

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as
per ‘Definition of default and credit-impaired’ above), either over the next 12 months
(12M PD}, or over the remaining fifetime {Lifetime PD} of the obligation.

EAD is based on the amcunts the Bank expects io be owed at the time of default, over
the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

Loss given default (LGD) represents the Bank's expectation of the extent of less on a
defautted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparly, fype and seniority of claim and
availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss
per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD). LGD is calculated on 12-month or
fifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made ifthe
default occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected
to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the toan.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD, and EAD for each future month and for each
individual coliective segment. These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for
the likelihood of survival. This effectively calculated an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective rates or an approximation thereof.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

Credit risk

4.1.2 Expected credit loss measurement

4.1.2.1Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity
profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout
the lifetime of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical ohserved data and is
assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolic and credit grade band. This is
supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which
varies by product type. The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default, Forward-locking economic information is also
included in determining the 12-month and fifetime PD, EAD and LGD. These assumptions vary
by product type.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL_nmiodeis

IFRS 9 introduces the use of macroeconomic factors which include, but is not limited to, gross
domestic saving growth and export growth, and requires an evaluation of both the current and
forecast direction of the economic cycle. Incorporating forward looking information Increasas
the level of judgement as to how changes in these macroeconemic factors will affect ECL.

The Bank conducts sensitivity analysis on the main macro-economic factors used in forward-
laoking information. When the predicted value of the main macro-economic factors changes by
4% and 3%, the difference between the hypothetical expecied credit loss and the current
expected credit loss measurement does not excesd 8% (2021: 5%).

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wheraver they are identified,
in particular, to related parties, fo individual counterparties and groups, and to industries and
countries.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted in relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry
segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject fo an annuatl or more
frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product,
industry, sector and country are approved annually by the Board of Directors.
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

Credit risk

4.1.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

4.1.4

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below:

{a)

(b)

Coliateral

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices {o mitigate credit risk. The most
traditional of these is the taking of security for loans and advances, which is common
practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. All loans and advances to customers are secured by
collateral. Generally, the Bank shall accept all types of security and coliateral which can
be liguidated and enforced easily in the event of loan default.

The principal collateral types for loans and advances are morigages over residential
properties primarity land and building, and fixed deposits.

The carrying amount of collateral as at 31 December 2022 for loans and advances to
customers is LAK 1.797.872.911.415 (2021: LAK 1.505.022.346.191)

Lending fimits
The Bank mainfains sirict controt limits on loans 1o be disbursed to its customers by both

amount and term depending on the type of loan. Lending limits are in accordance with
the Regulation on limit of foan lending for Commercial Bank 330/BOL dated 2 July 2010,

Maximum exposure {o credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Gross cradit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets are as follows:

2022 2021
LAK LAK

Shortterm funds with central bank {exciude
cash on hand) 89.454.560.328 75,784.834.680
Placement with central bank 554.718.848.039 427 124 527 787
Deposits and placement with other banks 170.216.223.950 64.376.245.601

t cans and advances to customers

288.302.176.219 322.370,140.030

1.132.691.808.536 889.655.752.098

The above table represents a worse-case scenario of cradit risk exposure to the Bank at
31 December 2022 and 2021 without iaking account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached.

Short-term funds with central bank comprise demand deposit with central bank.

For on financial positions assels, the exposures set out in the table are based on gross carrying
amounts, As shown above, 25% of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and
advances to customers (2021 36%) and 52% from placement with central bank (2021: 48%).
Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure credit
risk to the Bank resulting from its loan and advances as 100% of the loans and advances are
backed up by coliateral.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

41

Credit risk

4.1.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The following table contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for
which an ECL allowance is recognised, The gross carrying amount of financial assets below
also reprasents the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets.

At 31 December 2022
Gross carrying amount

Allowance for credit fosses
Carrying amount {Nofe 9}
At 31 December 20214
Gress carrying amount

Adlowance for credit losses

Carrying amount {(Note 9)

At 31 December 2022

Gross carrying amount
Altowance for credit losses

Carrying amount
{Note 5.2)

At 31 December 2021

Gross carrying amourt
Allowance for credit losses

Carrying amount
{Note 5.2}

At 31 December 2022

Gross carrying amount
Allowance for credit losses

Carrying amount {Note 6)

At 31 December 2024

Gross carrying amount
Allowance for credit losses

Carrying amount {Note &)

Loans and advances {o customers

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
228.510.346.395 45.036.243.504 14.755.586.230  288.302.176.219
(38.077.724.202) (36.648.172.561) {14.755.586.230)  (B9.481.482.993)

190.432.622.193

8.388.071.033

198.820.693.226

255.604.307.273 58.585.405.608 8.180.427.148 322.370.140.030
{78.748.268.698) (51.598.288.811) (8.180.427.149) (138.527.095.658}
175.856.037.575 6.987.006.797 - 182.843.044.372
Short-term furkis with central bank
Stage 1 Stage Btage 3
12-anonth ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
85.454 560.328 - 89 454 .560.328

(108.688.132)

(105.688.132)

88.345872.196

89.345.872.196

75.784.834.680
{53.268.069)

75784.5534.680
{53.266.069)

75.731.566.611

75.731.566.611

Placement with central bank

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
584.718.848.039 - - 584.718.848.039
(873.393.596) - - (873.393.696)

583.845.454.343

583.845.454.343

427.124.527.787
{594.236.138;

427 424 527787
(584.236.138)

426.530.291.649

426.530.291.649
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

Credit risk

4.1.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Deposits and placements with other banks

At 31 December 2022

Gross carrying amount
Allowance for credit losses

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK

170.216.223.950 - -

{215.160.195}

170.216.223.950
(215.160.185)

Carrying amount (Note 7}

170.001.063.755

170.001.063.755

At 31 December 2021
Gross carrying amount
Allowance for credit losses

64.376.248.601
{76.490.914)

54.376.249.601
(76.490.914)

Carrying amount (Note 7)

4.1.4.1Loss allowance

ALT January 2022

Transfers:

Transfer to 12-month ECL
(Stage 1}

Transfer {o lifetime £CL not
credit impaired (Siage 2)

Transfer to lifetime ECL
credit impaired (Stage 3)

Net allowance writeback
during the year

Bad debts written off

Uther movement

Foreign exchange

At 31 December 2022
{Note 9)

At 1 January 2021

Transfers:

Transfer to 12-month ECL
(Stage 1)

Transfer to lifetime ECL not
credit impaired (Stage 2)

Transfer {o lifetime ECL
credit impaired (Stage 3)

Net allowance made during
the year

Bad debts written off
QOther movemeant

Foreign exchange

At 31 December 2021
{Note 9)

64.295.758.687 . - 64.299.758.687
L.oans and advances to customers
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL Lifatime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK

F8.748.269.698

51.598.388.811

8.180.427.149

139.527. 085658

1.349.584.701
{850.205.628}

(138.445.705)

(1.349.584.701)
850.205.628

(1.733.162.150}

1.671.6G7.855

360.933.368

(42.278.748.594)

247 269.730

(2.232.541.223)

(13.468.318.819)

750.633.892

1.871.607.855

8.803.252.685
(3.968.293.471)
311.378.119
(442786107

(46.943.814.828)
(3.968.293.471)
311.378.119
555,117,515

38.0677.724.202

36.648.172.661

14.755.586.230

89.481.482.993

6.555971.118

3.173.858.448

6.431.950.828

16.161.790.392

|
| 114518284

(336.870.788)

(121.964.276)

(114.618.384)

336.870.788

121.964.276

(344.216.680)

73.511.702.656

24.812.304

222.252.404

48.185.870.966

16.415.095

121.964.276

26.341.778.787
(26.482.403.852)
384.972.771
1.372.155.339

148.030.352.708
(26.482.403.852)
394.672.771
1.413.383.638

79.748.269.698

51.598.398.811

8.180.427.149

139.527.095.653
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RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

Credit risk

4.1.4.1Loss allowance

At 1 January 2022

Net allowance made during
the year

At 31 December 2022
{Note 5.2)

At 1 January 2021
Net allowance made during
the year
At 31 December 2021
{MNote 5.2}

At 1 January 2022
Net allowance made during
the year
At 31 December 2022
{Note 6}

At 1 January 2021
Net allowance made during
the year
At 31 December 2021
{Note 6)

At 1 January 2022
Net allowance made during
the year
At 31 December 2022
(Note 7)

At 1 January 2021

Nef allowance made during
the year

At 31 December 2021
{Note 7}

Demand deposit with central bank

4.1.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
53 268.069 - - 53.268.069
55.420.063 - - 55 420,063
108.688.132 - - 108.688.132
35.912.588 - - 35.812.586
17.355.483 - - 17.355.483
53.268.069 - - 53.268.069

Placement with central bank

tage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12+ month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Totai
LAK LAK LAK LAK

594.236.138

584 236158

279.157.558 - - 278157 558
873.393.696 - - 873.393.696
579.302.003 - - 579.302.003
14.934.135 - - 14.934.135
584.236.138 - - 594.236.138

Deposit and placements with other banks

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK
76.490.914 - - 76.490.814
138.669.281 - - 138.669.281
215.160.195 - - 215.160.195
7.208.056 - - 7.208.056
65.282.858 - - 69.282 858
76.490.914 - - 76.490.914
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RHE Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

4,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

Credit risk

4.1.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collatera!l held or other credit enhancements

4.1.4.2Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Bank’s credit exposure at their carrying
amounts (without taking into account any collateral held or other credit support),
as categorised by geographical region as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. For
this table, the Bank has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of
domicile of its counterparties.

Short-term funds with central
bank (exciude cash on
hand)

Placement with central bank

Deposits and placerment with
other banks

Loans and advances to
customers

31 December 2622

Short-term funds with central
bank (exclude cash on
hand)

Placement with central bank

Deposits and placement with
other banks

Leans and advances o
customers

31 December 2021

Thaitand Vietnar Lao PDR Total

- - 88.454,560.328 89.454 560.328

- - 584.718.848.039 584.718.848.038

14 465 480.298 2.481.827.777 153.268.815.874 170.216.223.850

288.302.176.218 788.302.176.219

14.465.480.298 2.481.3827.777

1.118.744.500.480 1.132.681.808.536

75.764.834.630
427.124.527.787

75.784.834.680
427.124.527.787

5.258.538.455 525.621.408 58.492.088.737 £4.376.249.601
- 322.370.140.030 322 370,140,030
5.258.538.455 625.621.409 883.771.592.234 889.655.752.098

Short-term funds with central bark comprise deposits with the BOL other than compulsory

reserve deposits.
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

Credit risk

4.1.4 Maximum exposure fo credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

4.1.4.2 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

)

Financial
Manufacturing
Construction
Cemmercial
Transportation
Service

QOthers

31 December 2022

Financial
Manufacturing
Constructicn
Commercial
Transportation
Service
Cthers

31 December 2021

Industry sectors

The following table breaks down the Bank's credit exposure at thelr carrying amounts (withowt taking inie account any collateral held or other
credit support), as categorised by industry seclors as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Credit risks relating to on-halance sheet items are as

follows:

Short-term funds
with central hank

Placement with
central bank

Deposits and
placement with other
banks

Loans and advances
to customers

Total

89.454.5660.328

584.718.848.029

170.216.223.950

25.0098.126.452
12.417.041.439
83.467.028.594
18.386.749.928
120.433.159.220
48.500.070.586

844.389.632.317
25.098.126.452
12.417.041.439
63.467.028.584
18.386.749.928
120.433.159.220
48.500.070.586

89.454,560.328

584,718.8458.039

170.216.223.950

288.302.176.219

1.132.691.808.536

75.784.834.680

427.124.527.787

64.376.249.601

25.399.276.597
15.417.975.821
84.386.875.581
14.744.964.385
130.628.835.772
51.792.411.856

567.285.612.068
25.398.276.597
15.417.975.821
84.386.875.591
14.744 964.395
130.628.635.772
51.792.411.856

75.784.834.680

427,124,527 787

64.376.249.601

322.370.140.030

889.655.752.008

Shart-term funds with central bank comprise deposits with the BOL other than compulsory reserve deposits.
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4,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.1

4.2

Credit risk
4.1.5 Write-off policy

The Bank writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted ali practical
recovery efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from
open positions in interest rate and currency, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as inferest rates and
foreign exchange rates.

421 Foreign currency exchange risk

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the risk of adverse exchange rate movements on
foreign currency exchange positions faken from time to time. The Bank maintains a policy of
not exposing itself lo large foreigh exchange positions. Nel opening position is being
monitored on a dalily basis to check how much of foreign currency position there is to reduce
risk and comply with the Bank’s and BOL’s regulations. Any foreign currency exchange open
positions are monitored against the operating reguirements, predetermined position imits and
stop-loss limits. Included in the table below are the Bank’s financial instruments af carrying
amounts, categorised by LAK, United States Dollar {UUS3) and Thailand Baht (THB} as at 31
December 2022 and 2021,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
4.2 Market risk

4,21 Foreign currency exchange risk

Assets

Cash and short-term funds with central bank
Plagement with central bank

Depaosits and placement with other banks
Loans and advances to customers

Total financial assets
Liabilities
Deposits from cusiomers

Amount due to parent company
Lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net on-balance sheet financial position

Cash and shori-term funds with central bank comprise cash on hand and deposits with the BOL including compulsory reserve deposits.

As at 31 December 2022

LAK

uspD

THE

Total

33.709.877.787

136.391.986.534
155.312.602 222

64.245.402.663
583.845.454 343
12.019.044.852

41.732.509.228

17.296.833.242

14.590.032.568
1.775.581.776

116.252.113.692
583.845.454.343
170.001.063.755
198.820.693.226

325.414.466.543

708.842.410.887

33.662.447.586

1.067.919.325.016

20.225.217.4¢1

13.043,824.889

40.718.374.825
530.885.266.119

16.547.977.537

77.491.663.853
630.885.268.119
13.043.824 889

33.269.136.380

671.603.640.944

16.547.977.537

721.420.754.861

292,145 330,163

37.238.769.943

17.114.470.049

346.498.570.155
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Notes fo the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
4.2 Market risk

4.2.1 Foreign currency exchange risk

Assels

Cash and short-term funds with central bank
Placement with central bank

Deposits and placement with other banks
Loans and advances to customers

Total financial assets

Liabilities

Deposits from customers
Amount due to parent company
lL.ease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net on-balance sheet financial position

As at 31 December 2021

LAK

ushD

THBE

Total

51.995,418.400

56.717.091.719
147.941.729.895

26.381.004.210
426.530.291.648
1.284.340.584
33.174,132.388

18.200.916.037

5.288.326.374
1.727.182.088

96.577.338.652
426.530.281.648
54.299.768.687
182.843.044,372

256.654,240.019

487.369.768.842

26.226.424.499

770.250.433.360

18.063.435.480

8.771.320.278

32.179.710.722
456.888.765.628

14.831.253.914

65.074.400.116
456.688.766.628
8.771.320.278

26.834.755,758

489.068.477.350

14.831.2563.914

530.734.487.022

229.819.484.261

{1.698.708,508)

11.395.170.585

239.515.946.338
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.2

Market risk

4.2.2 Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to
the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interast margins may increase as a result
of such changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected movemeants arise. The pelential reduction in net interest income from an unfavourable
interest rate movemant is monitored against the risk tolerance limits set. The Bank regularly monitors its interest rate risk to ensure that there are no undue
exposures to significant interest rate movement, The table below summarises the Bank's non-trading book fair value exposure to interest rate risks. It includes

the Banik's financial instruments at carrying ameunts (non-derivatives), catagorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing.

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

with central bank

Placement with centrat bank

Beposits and placement
with other banks

teans and advances o
customers

Total financial assets

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Amount due to parent
company

Lease liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Total interest
re-pricing gap

As at 31 December 2022

~_Upto1 month

> 1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

>1to 3 months >3 to 12 months

§.393.622.807

105.143.589.773

11.582.516.415

67.512.0580.603
46.845.675.145

7.489.336.980

516.333,383.740

18.489.46Z.001

154.905.856,023

1156.252.113.692

17.911.488.837

115,252.113.692
583.845.454.343

170.001.063.755

188.820.683.226

6.393.522.807

116.706.116.188

121.927.372.728

534.822.855.741

154.905.855.023

133.163.602.529

1.067.919.325.016

18.010.708.115

170.902.245

12.482.892.777

341.421.843

16.239.143.081

67.082.035.945
1.573.656.474

21.072.320.475

513.912.388.654
8.753.567.082

2.204.267.245

9,686.598.405

49.890.841.520

77.491.663.853

630.885,266.119
13.043.824.889

~ 18.181,610.360

12.824.314.620

84.894.845.500

543.738.276.211

2.204.267.245

59.577.440.925

721.420.754.861

{11.788.087.553)

103.881.801.568

37.032.527.228

{8.915.420.470)

152.701.587.778

73.586.161.604

346.498.570.155
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
4.2 Market risk

4.2.2 Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2021

Up to 1 month

> 1 to 3 months

> 3 10 12 months

> 1to 5 years

Over 5 years

Non-interest
bearing

Total

Assets
Cash and short-term funds

with central bank -
Placement with central bank -
Deposits and placement

with ather banks -
Loans and advances {o

customers -

5.000.604 509

426.630.291.649

45.103.785.782
2.032.643.050

37.456.658.226

143.353.743.086

96.577.338.652

14.195.488.396

96.577.338.652
426.530.291.648

64.299.758.687
182.845.044.372

Total financial assets "

5.000.504.509

473.666.700.481

37.456.658.226

143,353.743.0086

110.772.827.048

770.250.433.360

Liabilities

Deposits from customers

Amount due to parent
company

l.ease liabilities

23.649.401.737

274103786

11.226.287 237

55.077.992

8.321.033.257

423.282.957.690
2.636.407.538

10.891.633.9894

3.726.234.148

2.326.190.174

10.986.043.891

33.605.808.938

85.074.400.116

456,888.766.628
8.771.320.278

Total financial liabilities 23.676.812.113

11.281.365.229

434.240.398.535

14.617.868.142

2.326.190.174

44.591.852.829

530.734.487.022

Total interest

re-pricing gap (23.676.812.113)

(6.280.860.720)

39.426,301.946

22.838.790.084

141.027.552.922

66.180.974.219

239.515.946.338

30



RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Lid

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
4.2 Market risk
4.2.3 Sensitivity analysis
{a) Interest rate risk
Sensitivity of loss before tax and equity to changes in interest rates by the following from
31 December 2022 and 2021 rates agreed on the loan agreements and deposits with

custormers with all other variables held constant are;

i CGains/{losses) — net increaseldecrease in interest rates for loans and advances
to customers, deposit and placement with central bank and other banks

2022 2021

LAK LAK
Increase 10% 12.110.940.973 9.856.297.470
Decrease 10% (12.110.940.973) (9.856.297.470)

ii. Gains/(losses) — net increase/decrease in interest rates for deposits from
customers and amount due {6 parent company

2022 2021
LAK LAK
increase 10% 12.952.921.950 15.141.224.076
Decrease 10% (12.952.921.950) (15.141.224 076)

(3} Fareign exchange risk

Sensitivity of loss before tax and equity o changes in foreign exchange rates by the
following from 31 December 2022 and 2021 rates in LAK, which is the functional
currency, primarily against USD and THB by increasing and decreasing of 10% with all
other variables held constant are:

2022 2021
usn LAK LAK
Increase 10% 3.723.876.994 (169.870.851)
Decrease 10% (3.723.876.994) 169.870.851

2022 2021
THB LAK LAK
Increase 10% 1.711.447.GC5 1.138.517.05%
Decrease 10% {1.711.447.005) {1.138.517.059)

4.3  Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a resuft
of customer deposits being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or other
cash outfiows, such as debt maturities or margin calis for derivatives.

Such outfiows would deplete availabie cash resources for client lending, trading activities and
investments. In extreme circumstances, lack of Fquidity couid result in reductions in the statement of
financial position and sales of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfil lending commitmenis. The
risk that the Bank will be unable to do so is inherent in all banking operations and can be affected
by a range of institution-specific and market-wide events including, but not limited to, credit events,
merger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and natural disasters.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGENMENT POLICIES

4.3

Liquidity risk

4.3.1

432

Liguidity risk management process

The Bank’s liguidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by
the Operatiocns Department includes:

. Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that
requirements can be met. These include replenishment of funds as they mature or are
borrowed by customers. The Bank maintains an active presence in global money
markets fo enable this to happen;

. Maintaining & porifolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as
protection against any unfereseen interruption to cash flow;

. Monitering of the liguidity ratios of the statement of financial position against interal and
reguiatory requirements of BOL; and

s Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next
day, week, and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management. The
starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial
liabilities and the expacted collection date of the financial assets.

Assets held for managing Houidiny risk

The Bank hoids a diversified portfolio of cash to support payment obligations and contingent
funding in & stressed market environment. The Bank's assets held for managing liquidity risk
comprise:

s Cash and short-term funds with central bank;

« Placement with central bank; and

¢ Deposits and placement with other banks
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.3  Liquidity risk

4.3.3 Non-derivative financial liabilities held for managing liquidity risk

The table below reprasents the cash flows payable by the financial liabilities held for managing liguidity risk by remaining contractual maturities at the date of
the statement of financial position. The amounts disclosed in the table ara the contractual undiscounted cash flows whergas the Bank manages the liquidity
risk based on a different basis, not resulting in a significantly different analysis.

Liabilities

Deposits from customers
Amount due to parent company
Other liabilities

Lease liabiliies

As at 31 December 2022

Liabilities

Depesits from customers
Amocunt due to parent company
Cther liabilities

Lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2021

Up to 1 month
and repayable
on demand

1 to 3 months

3 to 12 months

1to § years

Cver 5 years

Total

33.891.933.150
60.887.748.973
8.255,651.981

280,036.871

©.943.671.789
4.163.513.717
2.088.877.133

550.422.942

28.702.872.224
84.162.488.539

2.581.750.153

6.404.702.070
544.311.022.738

14.777.599.640

3.828.005.883

79.043.279.233
693.324.775.967
8.344.528.114
22.027.824.488

101.215.371.975

16.755.485.581

115.447.220.916

565.493.324.448

3.829.005.883

802.740.408.803

38.637.711.238
43.159.653.587
260.254.555
45.554.863

9.855.926476
2.515.891.470
441.428.745
©1.537.247

9.379.985.091
419.102.033.933

6.155.700.548
4.259.529.639

0.463.168.456

5.140.139.656

4.040.794 809

67.336.801.261
464.777.578.980
6.857.392.848
14.577.556.114

82.103.174.243

12.904.783.938

438.897.268.111

15.603.308.112

4.040.794.809

553.549.329.213

33



RHB Bank Lao Sole Co,, Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 Becember 2022

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.3 Lliquidity risk

4.3.4 OQff-balance sheet items

435

Credit facilities

2022 2021
LAK LAK

0.241.879.322
90.065.000.000

Unutilised overdraft
Undisbursed loans

11.575.563.293
3.210.000.000

99.306.879.322 14.785.563.203

Unutifised overdraft pertains to amount not yet withdrawn by the customers.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fairvalue hierarchy:

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as foliows:

) Leve! 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadiusted) in active markets for identical asseis or
liabiliies that the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inpuis other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectiy;

. Level 3 inpuis are unchservable inputs for the asset or liability.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Bank
considers relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where possible. The
management applies judgement in categorising financial instruments using fair value
hierarchy. Fair value disclosed is in level fwo valuation fechnigues.

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets
nct presented on the Bank's statement of financiat position at their fair value.

Financial assets
Loans and advances to customears

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December 2021

Carrying value
LAK

Fair value
LAK

198.820.693.226

204.624.214.283

195.820.693.226

204.624.214.263

Carrying value
LAK

Fair value
LAK

182.843.044.372

189.986.008.874

182.843.044.372

189.986.008.874
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.3

Liquidity risk

4.3.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

“The fol

lowing methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair value of financial assets

and liabilities:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv}

v)

(Vi)

Cash and short term fund with central bank, placement with central bank and deposits
and placemeant with other banks

For placement with central bank and deposits and placement with other banks with
maturities of less than six months, the carrying vaiue is a reasonable estimate of fair
value. For deposiis and placements with maturities of six months and above, estimated
fair value is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money market interest rate
at which similar deposits and placements would be made with financial institutions of
similar credit risk and remaining period to maturity.

Loans and advances 1o customers

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents the discounted amount of
estimated fuiure cash flows expected to be received. Expecied cash flows are
discounted atf current market rates to defermine fair value.

Deposits from customers

The fair values of deposits from cusiomers with maturities of less than one year
approximate their carrying values due {c the relatively short maturity of these
instruments. The fair values of deposits from customars and from othar banks with
remaining maturities of more than one year are expected to approximate their carrying
values due o the bank offered similar interest rate for similar maturities and terms.

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturities, which includes non-
interest-bearing deposits, deposits payable on demand is the amount payable al the
reporiing date.

Amount due to parent company

The fair values of amount due o parent company with maturities of less than one year
approximate their carrying values due io the relatively shorl maturity of these
instruments. The fair values of amounts due to parent company with remaining maturities
of more than one year are expected to approximate their carrying values due to the
similar interest rate for similar maturities and terms.

Other assets and liabilities

Carrying value of other financial assets and liabilities approximate its fair value.
Lease liabilities

The estimated fair value of iease liabilities with maturities of less than six months
approximates the carrying values. For other lease liabilities with maturities of six

months or more, the fair values are estimated based on discounted cash flows using
prevailing market rates of incremental borrowings.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

4.4

Capital management

The Bank’s cbjectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face
of the statement of financial position, are:

«  To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the banking markets where the
entities within the Bank operate;

« Tosafeguard the Bank’s ability fo continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for Head Office and benefits for other stakeholders; and

«  To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The Bank maintains minimum regulatory capital in accordance with Regulation No 01/BOL dated 28
August 2001 by the Governor of Lac P.D.R and other detailed guidance. The primary objectives of
the Bank's capital management are {o ensure that the Bank complies with externally imposed capital
requirements by BOL. The Bank recognises the need io maintain effectiveness of assets and
liabilities management to balance profit and capital adequacy.

In accordance with Regulation No 01/BOL, the Bank's regulatory capital is analysed inic two ters:

{i}y  Tier 1 capifal, which includes chartered capital, regulatory reserve fund, business expansion
fund and other funds and retained eamings; and

(i} Tier 2 capital, which includes qualifving subordinated liabifities, general provisions and the
element of fair value reserve relating {o unrealised gainsflosses on eguity instrumants classified
as available for sale.

Various limits are applied to elements of the capital base: gualifying tier 2 cannot exceed fler 1
capital, and gualifying subordinated liabilities may not exceed 50 percent of tier 1 capital. An analysis

of the Bank’s capital based on financial information is as follows:

Tier 1 capital
Tier 2 capital

Total capital
Less: deductions from capital

Capital for CAR calculation

Risk weighted siatement of financial position items
Risk weighted off balance sheet items

Total risk weighted assets

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratic
Tier 2 Capital Adequacy Ratio

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

447,981.020.000
18.163.850.000

394.440.580.000
15.382.960.000

466.144.870.000

409.823.550.000

466.144.870.000

409.823.550.000

244274 290.000

235.117.080.000

244.274.290.000

235.117.090.000

183%
7%

163%
7%
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5. CASH AND SHORT-TERM FUNDS WITH CENTRAL BANK

Cash on hand (Note 5.1)
Demand deposit with central bank (Note 5.2}

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)
Mandatory reserve deposits with central bank (Note 5.3}

5.1  CASH ON HAND

Cash ont hand - LAK
Cash on hand - foreign currency

5.2  DEMAND DEPOSIT WITH CENTRAL BANK

These are deposits made with BOL 1o cover any seltfement which bear no interast.

Demand deposit
Less: expected credit losses

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

21.101.341.058
89.345.872.196

16.120.753.168
75.731.566.611

110.447.213.254
4.804.900.438

91.852.319.779
4725018873

115.252.113.692

96.577.338.652

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

8.358.776.500
12.742 564 558

6.493.751.500
9.627.001.668

21.101.341.058

16.120.753.168

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

§9.454.560.328
{108.688.132)

75.784.834.680
{53.268.06%)

89.345.872.196

75.731.566.611

53 MANDATORY RESERVE DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL BANK

Compulsory reserve (i}
Special deposit {i)

2022 2021

LAK LAK
4.716.539.571 4.636.658.008
88.360.867 86.360.867

4.804.900.438

4.725.018.873

0] These are deposits maintained in BOL as per BOL regulations. The balance is adjusted and
calculated at 5% (2021: 3%) of LAK and 5% {2021: 5%) of other foreign currencies, such as
Thailand Baht {THB) and United States Dollar (USD), on the average balance of bank and
customer deposits, such as savings accounts, current accounts and term deposits as of the

year, These deposits do not earn interest,

(i) The Bank maintains an additional statutory capital depaosit with BOL. This deposit amount is
considered as a guarantee for the operations and such should not be withdrawn. Per regulation
Ne.01/BOL dated 28 January 2010, commercial banks and foreign branch which have
permanent office, no longer needs o appropriate a reserve of 25% of the registered capital and
the investment capital. This deposit does not earn interest.
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6.

PLACEMENT WITH CENTRAL BANK

Long term fixed deposit with central bank (i)
Less: expected credit losses

(i)

DEPOSITS AND PLACENENTS WITH OTHER BANKS

Deposits with other banks (Note 7.1}
Placements with other banks (Note 7.2)

Less: expected credit iosses

7.1

DEPOSITS WITH OTHER BANKS

Deposit with other banks
Less: expected credit losses

Included in cash and cash equivalents {Note 8)

Analysis by instifution

Balances with domestic banks
Banque Pour Le Commerce Exterieur Lao ~
Viertiane Branch

Balances with overseas banks
RHB Bank Berhad — Thailand
JP Morgan

tess: expected cradit losses

Included in cash and cash equivalents
{Note 8)

Deposits with other banks are current accounts and do not earn any interest.

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

584.718.848.038
{873.393.698)

427,124 527787
(594.236.138)

583.845.454.343

426.530.291.649

2022
LAK

Long ferm fixed deposits maintained with BOL earn interest at 6.50% (2021: nil} per annum with a term
of 1(2021: nil) year and at 6.50% (2021: 5.50%) per annum with a ferm of 3 (2021: 3) years.

2021
LAK

17.918.183.545
152.298.080.405

14.200.288.319
50.175.961.282

170.216.223.950
(215.160.195)

64.376.249.601
(76.490.914)

170.001.063.755

64.299.758.687

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

17.818.163.545
(6.674.708)

14.200.288.319
{4.799.923)

17.911.488.837

14.195.488.396

2022 2021
LAK LAK
970.855.46% 8.216.128.455
970.855.469 8.316.128.455

14.465.480.299
2.481.827.777

5.258.538.455
625.621.409

16.947.308.076

5.884.159.864

17.918.163.545
(6.674.708}

14.200.288.319
(4.782.923}

17.911.488.837

14.195.488.396

38



RHB Bank Lao Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

7. DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENTS WiTH OTHER BANKS

7.2

PLACEMENTS WITH OTHER BANKS

Placement with other banks
Less: expected credit losses

Analysis by instifution

Piacements with domestic banks
Acleda Bank Lao Lid.

KasikornThat Bank Limited

Military Commercial Joint Siock Bank — Lao
Branch

Saigon Thuong Tin Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd,
VietinBank Lao Limited

Lass; expected credi losses

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

152.298.060.405
(203.485 487)

50.175.961.282
(71.690.991)

152.089.574.918

50.104.270.291

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

60.431.506.849
30.057.123.288

10.116.000.660
41.638.874.712
10.058.556.65¢0

45.168.287 671

5.007.673.611

152.298.060.405
(208.485.487)

50.175.964.282
£71.690,991)

152.089.574.918

50.104.270.291

Piacements with domestic banks carry inferest rates from 3.20% fo 4.50% (2021: 2.25% to 5.25%)
per annium with terms ranging from 3 months to 6 months {2021: 3 months {o 12 months).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with central bank (Note 5}
Deposits with other banks (Note 7.1)

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

l.ecans and advances to customers
Less: allowance for credit losses (i)

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

110.447.213.254
17.911.488.837

91.852.319.778
14.195.485.398

128.358.702.091 106.047.808.175
2022 2021
LAK LAK

288.302.176.219
(89.481.482.993)

322.370.140.030

{139.527.095.658)

198.820.693.226

182.843.044.372

The Bank offers its customers interest rates ranging from 4.00% 10 9.50% (2021: 4.00% 1o 14.00%) per annum
with maturity ranging from 1 to 25 years {2021: 1 to 25 years) depending on each loan agreement.
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9.

10.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(i) The movement in aliowance for credit losses is as follows:

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

As at 1 January

Allowance (write back)made during the year
Utilisation for bad debt written off

Other movement

Foreign exchange difference

139.527.095.658
(46.943.814.828)
{3.968.293.471)
311.378.11¢
555.117.515

16.161,780.382
148.039.352.709
{26.482.403.852)
394.972.771
1.413.383.638

As at 31 December

§9.481.482.993

139.527 095658

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Computer software in progress™ Total
LAK LAK LAK
Cost
At 1 January 2022 9.053.247.727 4928 552 574 13.981.800.301
Additions 168.800.000 651.173.023 823.973.023
Reclzssification 5.303.000.782 (5.303.000.782} -
As at 31 December 2022 14.526.048.509 279.724 815 14.805.773.324
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2022 {7.648.005.350} - {7.648.005.350)
Charge for the year {723.991.056} - (723.991.058)
As at 31 December 2022 (8.371.986.406) - {B.371.996.406)
Net book value at 31
December 2022 6.154.052.103 279.724.815 6.433.776.918

* Intangible assets in progress during 2022 are related to Information Technology

system.

Movement of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

In progress™
LAK

projects to enhance the

Fotal
LAK

Computer software
LAK

Cost
At 1 January 2021 8.032.065.118
Additions 1.021.182.608

4.928.552.574

8.032.065.119
5.949.735.1862

At 31 December 2021 9.053.247.727

4.928.552.574

13.981.800.301

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the year

(7.336.104.011}
{311.901.339;

(7.336.104.011}
(311.901.339)

At 31 December 2021 (7.648.005.350)

(7.648.005,350)

Net book value at 31

December 2021 1.405.242.377

4.928.552.574

6.333.794.951
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11.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Moverment of property and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Building & Office Computer Furniture & Fixed assets in
improvements equipment equipment fixtures  Motor vehicles progress* Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK
Cost:
At 1 January 2022 13.519.772.373 699.993.168 12.463.043.386 1.315.771.705 2.040.851.792 12.371.464.425 42.410.698.854
Additions - 35.203.00C 191.124.593 13.867.200 - 263.780.781 503.975.574
Disposal - {(27.344.,790) (12.400.00C) - - - (39.744.730}
Reclassification 27.803.950 44,291 648 12.370.795.712 - - (12.442,691.310) -
At 31 December 2022 13.547.576.323 752.143.027 25.012.563.691 1.320.638.905  2.040.651.792 192.353.900 42.874.927 638
Accumulated
depreciation
At 1 January 2022 (6.104,496.815) {599.711.885) {9.942.583.393; (1.123.910.190)  (1.932.704.823) - (19.703.417.108}
Charge for the year (1.329.522.250) (65.836.409) {(1.778.771.136) {91.508.3865) (100.979.152) - (3.366.617.312}
Disposal - 27.344 789 1.033.335 - - - 28.378.122
At 31 December 2022 {7.434.019.065) {638.203.505) (11.720.331.196) {1.215.418.555) (2.033.683.975) - (23.041.656.296)
Net book value at
6.113.557.258 113.938.522 13.292.232.495 114.220.350 6.967.817 192.353.900 19.833.271.342

31 December 2022

* Fixed assets in progress during 2022 are ralated to Information Technology hardware upgrads.
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.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Mavement of property and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Building and Office Computer Furniture and Fixed assets in
improvements eguipment squipment fixtures Meotor vehicles progress® Total
LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK LAK
Cost
At 1 January 2021 13.819.772.373 661.743.887 11.319.5650.103 1.307.521.705 2.040.851.752 - 28.849.339.860
Additions - 38.248.282 1.143.383.283 8.250.000 - 12.371.464.429 13.661.356.994
At 31 December 2021 13.519.772.373 699.993.169 12.463.043.386 1.318.771.765 2.040.651.792 12.371.464.429 42.410.696.854

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the year

(4.725.293.084)
{1.379.203.731)

(532.144.149)
(67 .567.745)

(9.003.277.290)
(939.315.103)

{1.005.136.471)
(118.771.719)

{1.793.137.386)
(139.567.437)

(17.058.890.371)
(2.644.426,735)

At 31 December 2021

{6.104.496.815)

{589.711.885)

{9.942.583,393)

{1.123.910.18Q)

£1.932.704.823)

(18.703.417.108)

Net ook value at 31 December 2021

7.415.275.558

100.281.284

2.520,449.993

191.861.515

107.946.968

12.371.464.429

22.707.279.748

*Fixed assets in progress during 2021 are refated to Information Technology projects o replace those hardware nearing ifs end of useful lives in the coming year, upgrade

security system and building renovation.
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12.

13.

14.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January
Adjustments

At 31 December

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January

Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value at 31 December

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

14.907.232.837

14.827.940.522
79.292.315

14.907.232.837

14.907.232.837

{7.656.065.175}
{1,332.191.495)

(6.450.575 490)
(1.196.489.685)

(8.988.256.670)

(7.656.065,175)

5.818.976.167

7.251.167.662

The right-of-use assets recognised pertains to the lease of head office in Phonxay and branch offices in
Sithan Neau and Dengdok.

OTHER ASSETS

2022 2021
LAK LAK
Prepaid expenses (i) 865.559.086 2.245377.002

Others (i) 1.496.810.000 885.663.032

2.366.369.086 3.130.940.034

{i) Prepaid expenses include advance payments for lease line, software maintenance, and
insurance.

{1} These include advance payment and bank supplies such as cheque books, passhooks and
signature verification slips.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Deferred income taxes are calculated in full of temporary differences, using the liability method and using a
principal tax rate of 20%, which is the enacted tax rate at the balance sheet date (2021: 20%). The deferred
taxation related to the temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets,
refating to loans and advances, cash and shori-term funds with central bank, placement with central bank, and
deposits and ptacements with other banks:

2022 2021
LAK LAK

As at 1 January 27.239.853.146

Deferred income tax charged to/(from) the statement of
profit or loss (Note 26)

(2.346.007.789)

(10.154.401.744) 29.585.860.935

17.085.451.402 27.239.853.146

As at 31 December

43



RHE Bank Lao Sole Co., Lid

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

14.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

For the financial year 2022, the Bank had taxable profit where loss carried forward from 2021 has been applied.
The remaining loss carried forward from 2022 amounts fo LAK 14.419.778.757 (2021: LAK 25.117.816.586) which
can be carried forward fo offset against taxable profit to be realised for the remaining years from 2023 to 2025
(2021: 2022 to 2025). subject to certification by the National Audit Authority with the acknowledgement from the
tex authorities.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on tax losses as the Bank did not receive any certification
from the Tax Authorities as of 31 December 2022. Tax losses incurred in any tax year can be carried forwarg
to offset against profit realised in the following five tax years from the year loss was incurred subject to cerification
by the National Audit Authority or an independent audit company and with the acknowledgement of the tax
authorities. Upon expiration of such period, any remaining loss may no longer be deducted from profits.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through

the future taxable profits are probable.

Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or loss comprised with the following:

L.oans and advances

Cash and short-term funds with
central bank

Placement with central bank

Deposits and placaments with
other banks

Total

Loans and advances

Cash and shert-term funds with
central bank

Placement with central bank

Deposits and placements with
other banks

Total

Net deferred tax
{Hability)/asset as
at 1 January
2022

LAK

Deferred tax
income/ {expense)
recognised during

2022

LAK

Net deferred fax
{liability)/asset as
at 31 December
2022

LAK

27.095.054.12

[

10.653.614
118.847.228

15.298.182

{10.249.051.125}

11.084.012
55.831.511

27.733.858

16.846.002.997

21.737.626
174.678.739

43.032.040

27.239.853.146

{10.154.401.744)}

17.085.451.402

Net deferred tax
{Hability)/asset as
at 1 January

2021

LAK

Deferred tax
income/ (expense}
recognised during

2021
LAK

Net deferred tax
{liability)/asset as
at 31 December
2021

LAK

{2.470.492.318)

7.182.517
115.860.401

1.441.611

29.565.546.440

3.471.097
2.986.827

13.856.571

27.095.054.122

10.653.614
118.847.228

15.298.182

(2.346.007.789)

29.585.860.935

27.239.853.146
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15. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

The amounis due to customers are analysed as follows;

aj Analysis by types of deposit account

Current deposits
Saving deposits
Term deposits

b) Analysis by interest rates

Current deposits
Saving deposits
Term deposits

Fixed deposits and accrued interest payable (1)
intercompany payable {ii)

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

10.498.901.165
10.896.956.668
56.095.806.02C

11.628.423.065
16.680.280.782
36.765.696.269

77.491.663.853

65.074.400.116

2022 2021
LAK LAK
0% 0%

1.60% to 2.00%
2.50% 10 6.75%

2022
LAK

1.60% to 2.00%
2.25% 10 8.75%

2021
LAK

580.994.424 588
49.880.841.520

423.282.957.630
33.605.508.938

630.885.266.119

456.888.766.628

(i) Fixed deposits denominated in USD carry interest rates from 4.00% to 4.50% (2021: 1.00% to 3.75%)
per annum with terms ranging from 1 fo 3 years {2021: 1 week to 3 years).

(i) Intercompany payable includes purchases of properly and equipment initiaily made by RHB Bank
Berhad - Malaysia during the start-up phase of the Bank. The intercompany payable is repayable on

demand.
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17. OTHER LIABILITIES

2022 2021
LAK LAK
Accruals, provisions, and other liabilities (i) 8.344.529.114 6.857.392.848

{n Accruals, provisions, and cother labilities include banker’s cheques, accruals for utifities, bonus,
and other liabilities to suppliers.

18. LEASE LIABILITIES

2022 2021

LAK LAK

Lease liabiiities from property 13.043.824.889 8.771.320.278
Scheduled repayments of lease liabilities:

- Within one year 2.085.980.562 2.718.895.956

- Beyond one year 10.957.834.327 6.052.424,322

13.043.824.889 8.771.320.278

The tolal cash outflow for leases in 2022 was LAK 3.183.637.594 (2021: LAK 1.328.507.940) which
includes the principal and interest payments.

13. PAID-UP CAPITAL

RHE Bank Berhad
{100% shareholding)

Number of Amount

shares {LAK)

At 1 January 2021 37.900.500 380.900.025.000
lzsuance of shares during the year 3.950.250 39.700.012.500
At 31 December 2021 41.850.750 420.600.037.500
Issuance of shares during the year 3.950.250 38.700.012.500
Af 31 December 2022 45.501.000 460.360.050.0600

RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia owns 100% of the Bank’s shares representad by 45.801.000 (2021: 41.850.750)
shares with issue price of LAK 10.050 {2021: LAK 10.080) per share. All issued shares were fully paid.
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20.

21.

22,

LEGAL RESERVE

There was no movement in fegal reserve fund during the year.

At 1 January/At 31 December

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

2.130.187.655

2.130.187.655

A legal reserve shall be maintained in accordance with the Law on Enferprise No. 46/NA. dated 28
December 2013 where the Bank shall annually convert ten percent of its net profit into the reserve funds
after deducting its accumulated losses. The Bank has set up its legal reserve based on its net profi derived
under a separate set of financial statements prepared in accordance with the Bank's accounting policies and
the BOL's relevant accounting regulations and notifications as required by BOL.

NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
interest income from customers
interest income from banks

Interest expense

interest expaense from customers
interest expense from banks

interest expense from parent company
interest expense from lease liability

Net interest income

NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Credit related fees
QOther fees

Fee and commission expense
Commission expensses
Wire transfer fees

Net fee and commission income

2022
LAK

2021
LAK

24.015.204.159
34.088.166.158

27.428.798.8972
25.054.320.724

58.103.370.317

52.483.119.696

17,82

(9]

845 023)

(20.253.457.186)
(477 685.989)

(1.564.255.544)
(257.524.890)
(16.959.747.302)
(364.808.788)

(23.555.088.198)

(19.146.336.524)

34.548.282.119

33.336.783.172

2022 2021
LAK LAK
306.938.818 340.292.709
378.608.704 421.988.887
638.545.522 762.281.596

(71.462.704)
(264.104.668}

(68.701.582)
(194.122.368)

(335.567.370)

(262.824.250)

352.978.152

499.457.346
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23. PAYROLL AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

2022 2021
LAK LAK
Salaries and wages 15.800.721.328 10.714.324.054
Bonus 652.107.095 801.468.080
Other staff costs 1.282.785.902 627.373.749

17.835.614.325 12.143.166.883

24. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2022 2021
LAK LAK

Repair and maintenance 3.154,188.860 2.929.076.973
insurance 1.115.135.020 863.432.224
Professional fees 1.032.724.279 1.067.685.898

Communication expense 505.378.455 500.115.742
Utilities 275413.115 239.481.925
Security fee 298.800,000 299.000.000
Office stationery expense 417.828.955 306.197.641
Meal and travehing 383.913.938 88.221.100
farketing and public relations 185.412.200 138.193.512
Board of directors’ fees and allowances 277244330 332.831.370
Other administrative expenses 371.272 481 112,449,131
8.027.413.634 6.876.785.516
25. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES ON LOANS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2022 2021
LAK LAK
(WRITE BACK)YCHARGE
loans and Advances
- Net (write back)charge (46.943.814.828) 148.039.352.709
- Bad debts recoverad {11.001.881.108) (1.919.977.998)
(57.945.695.936) 146.119.374.711
Other financial assets 473.246.902 101.572.476
NET (WRITE BACK)/CHARGE (57.472.449.034) 146.220.947.187
26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2022 2021
LAK LAK

Current income tax

Deferred income tax expense/{benefit) (Note 14) 10.154.401.744

{29.585.860.935)
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26.

27.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Presented below is the numerical reconciliation between curreni tax expense and income benefit:

2022 2021

LAK LAK

Profiti(loss) before tax 60.824.686.169 {134.088.888.809)

Tax rate 20% {2021; 20%) 12.184.937 234 {26.817.777.762)
Tax effects on losses carry forward where no deferred

tax assets Is recognised {2.139.607.566) {1.835.535.427)

Tax effects of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 60.266.678.838 10.530.792.027

Tax effects of income not taxable for tax purposes {60.157.606.760) {11.463.339.773)

Income tax expense 10.154.401.744 {29.585 860.935)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Bank is 100% owned by RHB Bank Berhad — Malaysia, which is the Bank’s ulimate controlling party.

A few banking transactions were enterad intc with related parties in the normal course of business, which
were mostly deposits. There were no loans issued {o related parfies.

Deposits from key management personnel comprise savings and fixed deposits. Savings deposits are
repayable on demand and carry interast rates renging from 1.80% to 2.00% (2021 1.60% to 2.00%) per
annum, depending on e currency. Fixed deposits carry inlerest rates ranging from 2.50% 1o 8.10% (2021
2.50% to 6.10%) per annum, depending on the term and currency. Fixed depasits from key management
personnel have terms ranging from 1 1o 36 months (2021 1 to 36 months). Loans and advances carmry
interest rates of 4.00% (2021: 4.00%) per annum with terms ranging from 72 to 300 months {2021: 72 to 300
rmaonths).

The volume of related-party transactions, gross culstanding balances at the year-end, and related expense
and income for the year are as foflows:

2022 2021
LAK LAK
RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia {(Holding Bank}
{a) Fixed deposits
At 1 January 423.282.957.690 387.669.116.207
Deposits withdrawn and interest expense during
the year (47.407.141.305) (42.933.769.593)
Foreign exchange loss 205.118.608.214 78.547 611.076
As at 31 December (Note 16) 580.994.424.599 423.282.957.690
Interest expense {Note 21) 20.253.457 186 16.959.747.302
(b} Intercompany payable
At 1 January 33.805.808.938 27.943.944.282
Foreign exchange loss 16.285 032,582 5.661.864.656
As at 31 December (Note 16) 49.890.841.520 33.605.808.938
Monthly swift payment 264.104.666 194.122.368
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27.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2022 2021
LAK LAK
RHB Bank Thailand
{a} Term deposit
At 1 January 5.258.538.455 4.076.428.21%
Deposits placed during the year 7.026.693.337 778.841.329
Foreign exchange gain 2.180.248.507 403.267.907

At 31 December (Note 7)

Director and key management personnef

14.465.430.299

5.258.538.455

(a} Deposits
At 1 January 3.888.475.911 3.406.571.821
Deposits and interest received during the year 277.530.396 52.657.252
Fgreign exchange lnss 1.391.236.583 439.246.838

{b)

As at 31 December

Interest expense

Loans and advances

A1 January

Loans disbursed during the year

Loans repaid during the vear

As at 31 December

Interest income

Salartes and other shori-term employee benefits
Social security contribution (i)

B

Social security contributions by the Bank include the post-employment benefit.

28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(&)

Capital commitment

5.567.242.890

3.898.475.911

163.085.181

10.271.423.146
B657.589.811
{1.071.137.679)

147.829.788

14.857.779.477
1,145.780.912
(5.752.067.243)

9.857.945.278

10.271.493.146

492.310.445

16.606.541.503
40.770.000

491.383.698

7.974.414.476
47.250.000

In order to meet the minimum capital requirement of LAK 500.000.000.000, as per revised Law on
Commercial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018, RHMB Bank Berhad needs to inject additional
capital. BOL has already acknowledged the capifal injection schedule of the remaining LAK
188.500.000.000 of which LAK 39.700.000.000 representing 20% {2021, LAK 38.700.000.000
representing 20%) has been injected in July 2022 and November 2021 respeciively. The
acknowiedgement is supported by the mermo BOL No. 510/CBSD and No. 667/CBSD, dated 08 July
2022 and 29 November 2021 respectively. As at 31 December 2022, the approved schedule of the
remaining capital injection is as follows:

Schedule Amountin LAK Percentage Period
31 December 2023 39.700.000.000 20% g
39.700.000.000
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28.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

{b}

{©

Credit facilities

The Bank had the contractual amounts of the Bank's off-financial position, financial instruments that
commit i fo extend credit fo customers. Unutilised overdrafts are those credit limit provided to
customers but have not yet been withdrawn as at 31 December 2022 and 2021,

2022 2021

LAK LAK

Unutilised overdraft 9.241.878.322 11.575.563.293
Undisbursed loans 90.065.000.000 3.210.000.000
69.306.879.322 14.785.563.293

Taxalion conlingencies

The taxation system in the Lao PDR is relatively new and is characterised by numerous taxes and
frequently changing legislation, which is often undlear, contradictory, and subject to interpretation.
Often, differing interpretations exist among numerous taxation authorities and jurisdictions. Taxes are
subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose
severe fines, penalties and interest charges.

These faclts may create tax risks in Lao PDR substantially more significant than in olher countries.
Management believes that if has adeguately provided Tor tax liabilities based on s interpretation of
tax legislation. However, the relevant authorities may have difering inferpretations and the effects
could be significant.
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